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2007 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Bill/Resolution No. SB 2206
Senate Judiciary Committee
[[] Check here for Conference Committee
Hearing Date: January 22, 2007

Recorder Job Number: 1801

Committee Clerk Signature 277,114, XM
>

Minutes: Relating to the violation of bran laws.

Senator David Nething, Chairman called the Judiciary committee to order. All Senators were
present. The hearing opened with the following testimeny:

Testimony In Support of Bili:

Sen. Ryan Taylor, Dist. #7 {meter :20) Introduced the bill. | agreed to put this forward at the
request of the ND Stockman’s Assoc. | agreed with them that we needed to review the
penalties to see if the need to be updated. Spoke of his personal ranching issues. Reviewed
his legislative process in producing the bill.

Rep. Shirley Meyer, Dist. #36 (meter 2:45) Co-sponsor of the bill. In agreement to increase
the penalty of cattle theft. Concern for the forgetting to get a brand release vs. stealing cattle.
Discussed her district of ranchers that live on the boarders and how they move cattle. We do
not want the accidental forgetting to get a release when moving cattle to become a Class C
Felony.

Wade Mosser, ND Stockmans Assoc. {meter 6:00) The legistation has come from our
investigators several years ago. We have filed reports with the States Attorney’s office saying
that for a misdemeanor it is not worth their time. It gives our people the elusion that we are

not doing anything about it to our people. Spoke of the process with there assoc. in creating
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the bill. It is not our intent to through an accidental incident to through an innocent person into
jail.
Sen. Olafson spoke of the making of amendments (meter 9:00}
Darryl Howard, ND Stockmen’s Assoc.(meter 9:44) Field investigator who reviewed what the
current process of notifications. Hand out — Att. #1 of what surrounding states do. This
legislation would put ND in the middle. He reviewed the bill (meter 12:50) line by line.
Sen. Olafson spoke (meter 13:31) of the possibility to amend so not to make a “joke” become
a Class C Felony.
Sen. Lyson (meter 20:48) asked the credentials of the Field Investigators. We are licensed
peace officers under 36.09-25.

Sen Fiebiger stated that the language in Section 5 does not allow boarder residents any
exemptions. Committee spoke of concerns for ranchers who's land borders two states.
Sen. Lyson stated that he had great concerns with the over strictness of this law.
Testimony in Opposition of the Bill:
Tim Purdon, Law firm in Bismarck representing self (meter 27:07 Sited other class B Felonies
as being Meth and Mans slaughter this hardly fits in that group. Spoke of a bill in 1991 the
Governor vetoed. Discussed the ND law terms “wilifully”, “intent” and “standard”. Stealing
cattle already is in th'e law and punishable. The solution is not raising the penalty it is a review
of the law process. The dog would be wagging the tail. Reviewed past convictions in ND for
cattle theft, they are prosecuting the law. | am for the bill but against the penalty.
Willard Schank, Richardton, ND (meter 31:15) | am not against laws but | have great
concerns for this on. Reviewed a personal situation — Att. #2a and Att. #2b. | have concerns
about the penalty aspect of the bill.

Testimony Neutral to the Bill:
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w Dwight Keller, Morton Co. (meter 38:49) Spoke against the “language” in the bill. We need to
strengthen theft laws. Do not punish the un-intended person. Went through parts of the bill
: sighting his concerns.
Sen. Olafson spoke how very few people brand in his part of the state.
Senator David Nething, Chairman closed the hearing.
Additional Testimony Submitted to the Committee:
‘- Mr. Ned Hermanson, Rancher McKenzie Co. — Att. #3

Mr. Gary L. Jackson, Attorney in MT. — Att. #4
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Minutes: Relating to the violation of bran laws.

Senator David Nething, Chairman called the Judiciary committee to order. All Senators were
present. The hearing opened with the following committee work:

Sen. Olafson reviewed the amendment — Att. #1 stating that Sen. Taylor and the Stockman’s
Assoc. worked on the amendment with him.

Sen. Lyson question on page 3 line 14, that he still had a problem with the Class A
misdemeanor and the Class C Felony-this is the same as murder.

Discussion of “knowingly: Sen. Olafson spoke of a personal case. The dollar amount on
mistakes can be very expensive. We have civil remedies to go back for money. The

committee had further discussion of the punishment.

Sen. Olafson made the motion to Do Pass the amendment — Att. #1 dated 2/5 and to further
amend changing the offense and Sen. Lyson seconded the motion. All members were in

favor and the motion passes.

Sen. Olafson made the motion to Do Pass SB 2206 as amended and Sen. Lyson seconded

the motion. All members were in favor and the motion passes.
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Carrier; Sen. Olafson

Sen. Nething, Chairman closed the hearing.



At #
LR-50
70310.0303 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Taylor
February 2, 2007

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BiL.L. NO. 2206

Page 1, line 9, after "a" insert "class A misdemeanor for a first offense and a" and after "felony”
insert "for a second or subsequent offense”

Page 1, line 11, after "another” insert “for the purpose of deceiving others as to the animal's
ownership”

Page 1, line 14, after "misdemeanes” insert "for the purpose of deceiving others as to the
animal's ownership”

Page 3, line 1, replace "willfully” with "knowingly"

Page 3, line 23, after the period insert "This subsection does not apply to a person that:

a. Removes cattle, horses, or mules from this state in order to obtain for
the animals medical treatment by a licensed veterinarian; or

b. Moves cattle, horses, or mules from this state to a bordering state in

accordance with a reciprocal grazing agreement between the state
brand inspector and an authorized agency of the bordering state.”

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-27-2477
February 8, 2007 9:10 a.m. Carrier: Olafson
Insert LC: 70310.0304 Title: .0400

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2206: Judiciary Committee (Sen. Nething, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS
AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2206 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 1, line 9, after "a" insert "class A misdemeanor for a first offense and a" and after "felony”
insert “for a second or subsequent offense”

Page 1, line 11, after "another” insert "for the purpose of deceiving others as to the animal's
ownership”

Page 1, line 14, after "misdemeanss” insert "for the purpose of deceiving others as to the
animal's ownership”

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "B" and after "misdemeanst” insert "C"
Page 3, line 1, replace "willfully” with "knowingly”
Page 3, line 14, replace "B" with "C"

Page 3, line 23, after the period insert "This subsection does not apply to a person that:

a. Removes cattle. horses, or mules from this state to obtain for the
animals medical treatment by a licensed veterinarian; or

b. Moves cattle, horses, or mules from this state 1o a bordering state in

accordance with a reciprocal grazing agreement between the state
brand inspector and an authorized agency of the bordering state.”

Page 3, line 31, remove the overstrike over "G" and remove "B"

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK. (3) COMM Page No. 1 SR-27-2477
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2007 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Bill/Resolution No. SB 2206
House Agriculture Committee
[ 1 Check here for Conference Committee
Hearing Date: 3-9-07

Recorder Job Number: 4822

. , P NN/ S R
Committee Clerk SlgnaturL %%é;:m/{%

Minutes:

Chairman Johnson opened the hearing on SB 2206.

Sen Ryan Taylor, Dist 7: | am submitting it on behalf of the ND Stockman's Association.
There is some concern that some of the brand laws are outdated and prosecution is difficult.
We want to punish the guilty and protect the innocent. And this bill still makes allowances to
protect the innocent and for those who unknowingly break the law.

Rep Onstad: | can understand stealing and theft, but a class C felony for losing a bill of sale?
Taylor: No it would not be and that's maybe an amendment that wouid come before you.
There is a consistent step up from a class A misdemeanor to a class C felony. I'm not an
attorney but the "willfully and knowingly" also lends some allowances.

Rep Shirley Meyer: (five handouts attached)

Our intent is to make it much tougher when someone steals livestock. (amendments attached)
We hope to get rid of some of the compounding misdemeanors that turn into felonies in this
bill. We do not want to make criminals out of honest people.

Rep Boe: You talk about a class C felony. Do you know what else is a class C felony -

comparably?
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Rep Meyer: We need penalties to fit the crimes. Examples: kidnapping, sexual offenses,
robbery, breaking and entering, prostitution. Those are the kind of crimes that are class C
felonies. Under Section 3 we have allowed the certificate of registration to equal a permanent
brand registration.

Rep Mueller: Is there anything that is good in this bill that you and our chairman sponsored?
Rep Meyer: The first section of the bill is what we all want to as stockman's members and that
increases the penalty for theft of cattle. And that's what we want. The rest of it we need areas
of differentiation and this bill says we are going to give everyone a felony charge. Many states
attorneys have been accused of not prosecuting these cases unless they are felonies. | have
to say that this is absolutely not true. | have talked to them and they say they prosecute on the
merits of the case.

Darryl Howard, Chief Inspector for the Stockman's Association: We do have police
powers. There are 3 of us with powers and 220 additional brand inspectors. It is not the
average or typical rancher, who inadvertently makes a mistake, that we are after. We do run
into states attorneys who are unwilling to prosecute misdemeanors mostly because they are
unfamiliar with livestock laws. The value of livestock has gone up and so should the penatties.
The International Livestock Identification Association wants to maintain parallel laws and
parallel penalties with the other brand states. ND laws are middle of the road. (He then went
through each part on the bill)

Rep Boe: If | wrote a check for the cattle and wrote on there for 200 head of cattle, and | have
that cancelled check, is that as good as a bill of sale?

Howard: No sir, you need to list the brands that are on the cattle.

Rep Froelich: If | seli the cattle to Rep Boe and he gives me a check, and there is a problem

later, he can always come back and sue me civilly for damages.
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Howard: | don't know what his personal situation is, but if he's already strapped, and that's the
reason he's going to sell, it's going to cost him a lot up front.

Rep Froelich: Under this bill, if penalties are imposed, he would still have to come back to
collect financial damages.

Howard: There is a very good chance that there would be some restitution involved.

In the last few years the amount of restitution that we have helped victims recover has been in
the area of $350,000 to $400,000. You may need a bill of sale as long as you own the
livestock to prove the second brand. And that is why it says several times in the bill that it
must be kept by the buyers. It must be given in transit and produced upon demand. It carries
a great deal of weight and is more than a technicality to hold someone up.

Rep Froelich: Under this bill a person could get a class C felony while dealing with his own
cattle over state lines and later wants a teacher's certificate and probably can't get it.

Rep Boe: The key to this bill of sale is that it carries a brand. Up in my area not many people
brand their cattle. There are herd of 200-330 cows and none of them have a brand on them.
Don't they come under this law at all?

Howard: They don't. It only covers the cattle with your own brand on them.

Rep Boe: So if | am dealing with cattle with no brand, this law does not affect me?

Howard: If they have no brand or your brand, a bill of sale does apply.

Rep Boe: So you still have to have the bill of sale?

Howard: You need to give one at time of sale.

Rep Boe: The bill reads "with a registered brand".

Howard: If they have no brand, the possessor is the owner.

Rep Froelich: Why did you take out lines 14 and 157

Howard: Line 5 says that a person may not knowingly do it.
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Rep Onstad: Your situation seems more like fraud. Shouldn't it be under a different section of
code? Maybe under criminal offences. I'm not sure it's in the right place. | think we have
current laws that would deal with fraud and civil penalties.

Howard: (submitted amendment) deals with page 3 line 29

Rep Boe: You talk about pursuit. Do you have vehicles with lights, etc.?

Howard: Yes, three of us have pursuit vehicles.

Chairman Johnson: Have you seen the amendments that were offered by Rep. Meyer?
Howard: | haven't seen the actual amendment, no. But | would like to address the registration
papers as being proof of ownership to leave the state and again that will lead to trouble in the
brand states. Registration papers don't carry the clout because brands can be added to
registration papers just by requesting it to be done. If we let people travel using registration
papers, it may not reflect the current status of the horse.

Rep Belter: Going back to Section A where you wanted the word emergency in there. What
you're saying then, if it's a non emergency, you can't take any livestock across the state line to
take them to a veterinarian?

Howard: Not without inspection. All horses, cattle and mules must be inspected before they
can leave the state.

Rep Onstad: If you see an infraction, do you do the investigation?

Howard: Some of them, yes.

Rep Onstad: Why not the sheriff?

Howard: They are not familiar with livestock laws and how to investigate how the cattle move.
Rep Onstad: Would they more likely to listen to the sheriff if you have trouble getting the
states attorneys office to back us up.

Howard: No, but we use the sheriff's office to back us up.
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Rep Belter: What does the Minnesota law say? Do they have to be inspected when they
come to ND?

Howard: No, but they are inspected before they leave. We're bordered by some no brand
states, so if our cattle get out of state, they are gone.

Rep Onstad: Raising the infraction to a class C felony will get scrutinized heavily in judiciary
realizing the offences and the other thing is that person charged with a class A misdemeanor
that is one year in prison and $2000. But the second time could mean 5 years in prison and a
$5000 fine. Don't you think that is extreme.

Howard: We can't get a first conviction, so how are we going to get a second?

Rep Onstad: If we increase it, how do you expect to get better results?

Howard: The states attorneys might not be interested in taking a B misdemeanor to trial, so if
we go to an A misdemeanor, we actually have a penalty that will leave a little wiggle room for a
plea. If we ever get to a felony, it would probably not happen.

Rep Onstad: The point is we could still charge the person with a class A misdemeanor the
first time, the second offence will get 6 months in jail and the third offence he will be in jail for a
year. The seriousness of the cut and dried second offense whether you want to say it's a
warming or not, it is five years in the prison system.

Howard: Since I've been with the ND Stockman's office, we've had one that went there. That
case is the one that dealt with most of the restitution - $185,000 and he did do jail time for
approximately two and a half years.

Rep Froelich: You say these courts don't want to prosecute because they don't always see it
as that much of a problem. When it's in the law, there's no leeway.

Howard: The biggest problem that | have with cattle leaving the state is when we don't get to

inspect the cattle that left the state. So how do we know whose they were?
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Rep Froelich: We have three tiers of government dealing with horses.

Howard: This paper picture does not have a brand on it or proof of ownership. | am not in
favor of turning horses loose to travel wherever they want without proof of ownership.

Rep Boe: You indicated in your testimony that not all the states attorneys are turning down
your cases, that some are doing a good job. Some you aren't satisfied with. Wouldn't that be
a subjective statement.

Howard: I've talked to many states attorneys and they all have different opinions.

Chairman Johnson: With the direction we're going with this, | think I'll put it in a sub
committee.

Rep Froelich: We haven't discussed reciprocal agreements.

Howard: We have those with Montana and South Dakota. It’s to include folks with pastures
that have the state line running through them.

Jim Loman, Billings County: | raise cattle and horses north of Medora. | feel it is important
to update the law with this bill and bring it into the 21st century. The bill as | ready it points out
the difference between willful and not knowing. | think that is pretty plain. All our law
enforcement work hand in hand and do a good job. | think they sometimes feel their hands are
tied because of someone hiding behind the | didn’t know any better and forgot my bill of sale.
That brand is very important. It is proof of ownership. We need to back our law enforcement
officer more strongly.

Ladd Erickson, MclLean County States Attorney: | would be very happy to work with the
sub committee. | think there is a problem with Section One. It should have willfully right after
person on line 10 and leave willfully on line 14.  It's important to look at and fix page 3 line 24.
It has been a historical problem. It is important to fix this. | have not seen Rep Meyer's

amendments.
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NO OPPOSITION

Chairman Johnson appointed a sub committee:

Vice Chair Kingsbury, Chair

Rep Heller, Member

Rep Onstad, Member

Chairman Johnson closed the hearing.
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Minutes:

Chairman Johnson opened the discussion on the results of the subcommittee meeting on SB
2206 and asked Vice Chair Kingsbury to give a report on the subcommittee that she chaired.
Rep Onstad and Rep Heller also served on the subcommittee.

Vice Chair Kingsbury: (two handouts attached: penalty comparison and how it affects the
bill and a proposed amendment Title 70310.0405) Rep Kingsbury then went through the bill
and amendment by sections and answered questions with regard to the amendment and the
penalties. Ali the penalties on the review sheet from Anita Thomas were reviewed.

Rep Onstad: Rep Onstad reminded the committee that the penalties were the maximum that
could be received - the penalty could be anything up to that amount.

Rep Froelich had a problem with Section 4. He did not feel that the owner should need a
brand release on his own cattle. Someone else's yes, but not his own. Anyone can bring
cattle into the state, but they must be brand inspected before they leave.

Rep Onstad: In subcommittee we voted on the Kingsbury amendment that had a new section
as far as ownership goes for brand inspection. It comes down to the bill of sale which is
needed. The whole gamut in subcommittee discussions came down to what's accepted and

what isn't accepted. If you visit with Dr. Keller, the state veterinarian, they accept ownership
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. on other documents. The brand inspector still has to stop the person and do the brand
inspection and ask for the papers. That really becomes a part of contention. The
subcommittee never resolved that issue.

Vice Chair Kingsbury: Things seem to get muddier and muddier over this and other issues.
Rep Belter: Why do we need any brand inspection on horses? Cattle yes, but its overkill on
horses.

Rep Onstad passed out a sample of a certificate of registration (attached). He likened it to the
title of a car. The Health Department accepts these certificates as proof of ownership.

After much discussion:

Rep Boe: The whole thing is full of loopholes! (existing law and proposed amendments)

Rep Brandenburg: This takes much more discussion before we can do anything permanent

. with the bill.

Rep Mueller: Maybe we should strike horses from the whole bill. Horses and their usage, etc.
are not the same as 50 years ago.

Rep Froelich: Maybe we should hog house the bill and put a study on it for brands.

Rep Onstad: There was a time when the brand inspector's office was in the AG or Sec of
States office. Now it sits under basically a private entity which is the Stockman's Association.
It seems strange that we give regulatory enforcement to an agency that's under the thumb of a
private entity. Maybe part of the study should look at if that is the right place to be.

Rep Belter: | don't have any problems with the way the Stockman's Association has handled
the program, but there are some areas like the horse branding that have gone overboard.

Rep Kingsbury and Rep Onstad thought if a study was done it should include the study of

. registration and proof of ownership and branding laws and penalties.



Page 3

House Agriculture Committee
Bill/Resolution No. SB 2206
Hearing Date: 3-22-07

Rep Froelich moved the amendment to hog house the bill and add a study to include
registration and proof of ownership and branding laws and penaities.
Rep Brandenburg seconded the Motion

The amendment passed unanimously on a voice vote

Rep moved a Do Pass on the Bill
Rep Brandenburg seconded the Motion
(yes) 12 (no) 0 (absent) 1

Carrier: Rep Heller
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Minutes:
Chairman Johnson opened the discussion and asked the committee their wishes on SB

2206.

Rep Boe made a motion to reconsider the action on SB 2206
Rep Onstad seconded the motion

The motion passed on a voice vote

Rep Mueller moved the amendments
Rep Wall seconded the motion

The motion passed on a voice vote

Rep Boe moved a Do Pass as Amended
Rep Uglem seconded the motion
(yes) 10 (no) 2 (absent) 1

Carrier: Rep Heller



. AMENDMENT TO SB 2206
First Engrossment

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-23 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

Line 29 - Add the word 'emergency' after animals.

a. Removes cattle, horses, or mules from this state to obtain for the
animal's emergency medical treatment by a licensed veterinarian; or
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70310.0401 Prepared by the Legisiative Council staff for

Representative S. Meyer
March 8, 2007

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2206

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and

enact a new section to chapter 36-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to
certificates of registration for horses; and to amend and reenact sections 36-09-17,
36-09-20.1, and 36-09-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to penalties
imposed for violation of brand laws.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-17 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-17. Defacing brands and uniawfully branding - Penalty. Ary A
person whe-shalk:

1} Allerordefaceroratiermpt is quilty of a class A misdemeanor for a first

offense and a class C felony for a second or subsequent offense if the
person:

I—L

Alters, defaces, or attempts to alter or deface; the mark or brand upen on

any animalthe-preperty-ef owned by another for the purpose of deceiving
others as to the animal's ownership; or

2.  Willfully and unlawfully mark-erbrand-er-eause marks, brands, or causes
to be marked or branded; any animalthe-property-ef owned by another;

is-guilty-of-a-elass-A-misdemeaner for the purpose of deceiving others as to the animal's
ownership.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-20.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-20.1. False proof of ownership - Sale of livestock -~ Penalty. A person
that knowingly provides false proof of ownership in conjunction with the sale of livestock
is guilty of a class A misdemeanor for a first offense and a class B-mrisdemeaner C
felony for a second or subsequent offense.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 36-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Certificate of reqlstration - Permanent Inspection permit. A certificate of

registration issued for a horse by a national breed registry may be used in place of a
permanent inspection permit issued by the chief brand inspector.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-23 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-23. Removal of livestock from state - Brand inspection - Penalty.
1. a. Ne Aperson may not remove cattlesherses; or mules from this state

unless the livestock has been inspected for
marks and brands by an official brand inspector of the North Dakota

Page No. 1 70310.0401



stockmen’s association and-a, A certificate of inspection must
accompany the livestock to its destination.

. b. Aperson may notremove a horse from this state unless the horse has
been inspected for marks and brands by an official brand inspector of
the North Dakota stockmen's assaciation. A certificate of inspection, &

permanent inspection permit, or a certificate of reqistration issued for
the horse by a national breed registry must accompany the horse o
its destination.

This subsection does not apply to a person that:

|

(1) Removes cattle, horses, or mules from this state to obtain for
the livestock medical treatment by a licensed veterinarian; or

(2) Moves cattle, horses, or mules from this state to a bordering

state in accordance with_a reciprocal grazing agreement
hetween the state brand inspector and an authorized agency, of

the bordering state.

5 is-unlawiul-forthe The owner or possessor te-Femove-any of livestock
may not remove the livestock from any place of regular official brand
inspection urless-and until an official brand inspection has been made and
the brand inspection certificate issued.

3. A person whe that violates this section is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.
A person whe that violates this section a second time within fifteen years or

. violates this section three or more times is guilty of a class C felony.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 70310.0401




70310.0405 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for -

Representative Heller
March 20, 2007

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2206

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and

reenact sections 36-09-17, 36-09-20.1, 36-09-22, and 36-09-23 of the North Dakota
Century Code, relating to penalties imposed for violation of brand laws.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-17 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-17. Defacing brands and unlawfully branding - Penalty. Ary A
person whe-shalk

3  Allerordeiaso—oratterpt is guilty of a class A misdemeanor for a first
offense and a class C felony for a second or subsequent offense if the

person.

I

Willfully alters, defaces, or attempts to alter or deface; the mark or brand

upen on any animal-the-property-of owned by another for the purpose of
deceiving others as to the animal's ownership; or

2. Willfully and unlawfully mer«er-brand-ereause marks, brands, or causes
to be marked or branded; any animal—the-preperty-ef owned by another;

is-guilty-of a-class-A-misgemeaner for the purpose of deceiving others as to the animal's
ownership.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-20.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: '

36-09-20.1. False proof of ownershlp - Sale of livestock - Penalty. A person
that knowingly provides false proof of ownership in conjunction with the sale of livestock
is guilty of a class A misdemeanor for a first offense and a class B-misdemeaner C
felony for a second or subsequent offense.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-22 of the North Dakota Gentury
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-22. Sale of animal under false registration eertifleates certificate -
Changing marking - Austioneer— Penalty. Ne

1. A person may not knowingly:

4= a. Sell apy an animal with a certificate of registration or breeding that
does not belong to said the animal.

2 b Alter any animal's certificate of registration or

Change-in-any-way-the
breeding efanry-animat.

3. c¢. Falsely-represent Misrepresent any production record specified in any
a registration certificate.

av
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4. d. Change the markings of any animals animal with intent to deceive the-
purchaser or misrepresent the sire to which such animal has been
bred.

2. A person whe that violates any-ef-the-previsions-ef this section is guilty of a
class B A misdemeanor. .

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 36-09-23 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

36-09-23. Removal of livestock from state - Brand in—'spection - Penalty.

1. Ne A person may not remove or attempt to remove cattle, horses, or mules
from this state i

statefor-the-purposo-ofremoval unless the livestock has been inspected
for marks and brands by an official brand inspector of the North Dakota
stockmen's association ard-a. A cerfificate of inspection must accompany
the livestock to its destination. This subsection does not apply to_a person
that:

a. Removes cattle, horses, or mules from this state to obtain for the
animals medical treatment by a licensed velerinarian; or

b. Moves cattle, horses, or mules from this state to a bordering state in

accordance with a reciprocal grazing agreement between the state
brand inspector and an authorized agency of the bordering state.

2. JHsunlawiulfer-the The owner or possessor te+remeveany of livestock
may not remove the livestock from any place of regular official brand
inspection urtess-and until an official brand inspection has been made and
the brand inspection certificate has been issued.

3. Aperson whe that willfully violates this section is guilty of aclass B
mlsdemeanor
' fora
first offense, a class A misdemeanor for a second offense, and a class C
felony for a third or subsequent offense.”

Renumber accordingly
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Proposed amendments to SB 2206

Page I, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a legislative
council study of branding.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - BRANDING. During the 2007-08
interim, the legislative council shall study branding of catile, horses, and mules, The legislative
council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislatton required to
implement the recommendations, to the sixty-first tegislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly




70310.0406 Adopted by the Agriculture Committee
Title.0500 March 22, 2007

House Amendments to Engrossed SB 2206 (70310.0406) - Agriculture Committee
03/23/2006

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative council study of branding laws, penalties, registration, and certificates of
ownership.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - ANIMAL BRANDING. During
the 2007-08 interim, the legislative council shall study the branding of animals, brand
recording, brand law enforcement, and penalties for violation of the branding laws. The
legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any
legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-first legislative
assembly.”

Renumber accordingly
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2007 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

House Agriculture

Date:Cj/ﬁ?ﬁ‘z 97

Roll Call Vote #: /

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council mendmen Nzim/ber 5}6 0702& é
Action Taken % W /i 4%@4%

Committee

Motion Made By

/7 7/
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Dennis Johnson " Tracy Boe [\ v
Vice Chair Joyce Kingsbury L Rodney Froeljch | N
Wesley Beiter v Phillip Muelfer — e
Mike Brandenburg » Kenton Onftad/ L
Craig Headland v Benjamin Vi L
Brenda Heller v \
John D Wall ~_ | N/
Gerry Uglem % e /]
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Roil Call Vote #: 2.

2007 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House  Agriculture Committee

[J Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number %070?5 e

Action Taken %/ W A w?d W

Motion Made By W Seconded By %—L

7 - 4

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Dennis Johnson - Tracy Boe ol
Vice Chair Joyce Kingsbury -~ ;. | Rodney Froelich "
Wesley Belter &A1 Philiip Mueller —
Mike Brandenbur — Kenton Onstad N
Craig Headland v Benjamin Vig -/’
Brenda Heller v
John D wall v
Gerry Uglem »

Total  (Yes) /;Z\ No 2> (O

Absent /

Floor Assignment M/ / P / M/
rAna

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-55-6017
March 23, 2007 8:09 a.m. Carrier: Heller
Insert LC: 70310.0406 Title: .0500

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2206, as engrossed: Agriculture Commitiee (Rep.D.Johnson, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2206
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative council study of branding laws, penalties, registration, and certificates of
ownership.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - ANIMAL BRANDING.
During the 2007-08 interim, the legislative council shall study the branding of animals,
brand recording, brand law enforcement, and penalties for violation of the branding
laws. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together
with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-first
legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly
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Date:
Roli Call Vote #; /

2007 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House Agriculture/"
//,4 /

[[] Check here for Confdence Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number % c?ZQﬁ 4

Committee

Action Taken M @bﬂ/

Motion Made By 64{_

Seconded By W

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No

Chairman Dennis Johnson Tracy Boe
Vice Chair Joyce Kingsbury Rodney Froelich
Wesley Belter Phillip Mueller
Mike Brandenburg Kenton Onstad
Craig Headland Benjamin Vig
Brenda Heller
John D wall
Gerry Ugiem
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70310.0407 Adopted by the Agriculture Committee
Title.0800 March 28, 2007

House Amendments to Engrossed SB 2206 (70310.0407) - Agriculture Committee
03/28/2007

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1129 of the House
Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2206 is amended and reenacted as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative council study of branding laws, penalties, registration, and certificates of
ownership.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - ANIMAL BRANDING. During
the 2007-08 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the branding of
animals, brand recording, brand law enforcement, and penalties for violation of the
branding laws. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations,
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the
sixty-first legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly
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Roll Call Vote #: =

2007 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-58-6527
March 28, 2007 4:18 p.m. Carrler: Heller
Insert LC: 70310.0407 Title: .0600

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2206, as engrossed and amended: Agriculture Committee (Rep.D.Johnson,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (10 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2206, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1129 of the House
Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2206 is amended and reenacted as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative council study of branding laws, penalties, registration, and certificates of
ownership.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - ANIMAL BRANDING.
During the 2007-08 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the branding
of animals, brand recording, brand law enforcement, and penalties for violation of the
branding laws. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations,
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the
sixty-first legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, {3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-58-6527




2007 TESTIMONY

SB 2206
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My name is Ned Hermanson. | am a lifelong resident and rancher in McKenzie County. 1
was also a local brand inspector for 15 years. [ resi gned last year.

T oppose S.B. 2206 because of the Sec. 5 Amendmant which pertains to N.D.C.C. 36-09-
3. This bill will make criminals of a lot of honest folks.

In my opinion the existing Brand [nspection Program has one dircction. The direction
that has been promoted from the Brand Inspection Program’s beginning thru today is
“prevent Livestock ThefL.”

Everyone one knows a rustler is not going to stop and gel a Brand Inspection before
crossing a state line. And. because in many cases, livestock theft is almost impossibe 10
prove, N.D.C.C. 36-09-23 gives authorities an “easy to prove” way to get the “Bad
Guys.” “No Brand Inspection!”—“We got em!”

What about the good guys? What about the honest livestock owner that lives all along our
States borders? We do our daily trade across these borders and more often than anyonc
wants to abmit, honestly forget brand inspections on our livestock.

Tt happens every day. It’s happening right now as I speak. It happens because the State’s
border is an aficrthought for us folks. We cross it daily and don’t even think about it.
Neighboring, retreiving stray cattle, delivering to feedlots, bulchering, veterinary
services, rodeoing, team roping, livestock shows,--the list goes on and on. It happens
1000’s of times a year.

This Spring when I haul a heifer across the border, in the middle of the night with no
brand inspection, to my veterinarian, for a C-section, 1'li be in trouble with the Law. The
next weck, when I have to do the same thing, 1’11 be in BIG trouble with the Law, This
bill will force the authoritics to “Look the other way” if they want, or throw me in jail.

1 would gladly support a bili that increascs penaltics for intentional livestock theft in the
Sec. § amendmant of S.B. 2206 if the bill included a differentiation between Livestock
Theft penaltics and inadvertant failure by livestock owners who move their own livestock
across the border for lacal purposes. This harmless failure should carry no pcnaity
beyond an administrative written warning or a non- criminal fine, like a traffic ticket.

The proposed stiffer penalities in 8.B. 2206 Sec. 5 amendmant will criminalize a lot of
good guys while trying to deter a few bad guys. This bill asks to much from our citizens
compared to what it might gain for them.

Please do not support this bill.

Sincerely,

Ned Hermanson

983 1§50 A e
Algionclioy 0D SBE3
Phow P0i-w35- 307
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GARY L. JACKSON

ATTORNEY AT LAYV
111 2ND AVE. SW

P.O. BOX 1368, SIDNEY, MT 59270-1368

TELEPHONE: {406) 433-716] ADMITTED IN: MONTANA & NORTH DAKOTA FAX: (406) 433-7165
January 23, 2007
Moira Solberg
Committee Clerk
VIA FAX ONLY
Re: SB2206 (701) 328-2872

Dear Ms. Solberg:
Please deliver the enclosed letter to Mr. Dave Nething, Chaimman of the Senate Judiciary
Commattee.
SB2206 is scheduled for a first hearing before the Senate Judiciary Committee on
. Wednesday, January 24, 2007, at 10:30 a.m. in the Fort Lincoln Room.
‘ I respectfully request that the enclosed letter be treated as written testimony to be read
and entered into the record at the heanng.

Thank you for your assistance with this matter.

Vely truly yours,

ary/A/ Jckson
GLI: dh
Enclosure
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GARY L JACKSON 7 g

ATTORNEY AT LAW
111 2ND AVE. SW

P.O. BOX 1368, SIDNEY, MT 59270-1368
TELEPHONE: (406) 4337163 ADMITTED IN: MONTANA & NORTH DAKOTA FAX: (406) 433-7165

January 23, 2007
Mr. Dave Nething, Chairman
Senate Judiciary Committee

Re: SB2206
Dear Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

My name is Gary L. Jackson. | live in Richland County, Montana. However, I am
an attorney licensed to practice in both Montana and North Dakota. | have numerous
friends, neighbors and clients involved in the ranching/livestock industry. | vigorously
oppose SB2206, particularly the proposed amendments set out in Section 5, lines 28 —
31, pertaining to N.D.C.C. §36-09-23 (3). | urge you to vote against this bill.

The proposed amendment to Subsection (3) of the statute criminalizes non-

criminal behavior. It circumvents the purpose and intent of the brand inspection laws.

The purpose of brand inspection is to prevent theft and loss, However, this
proposed legislation formalizes into law a palicy that does not solve the problem for
which it is offered, but instead will encourage disrespect for the brand laws and for local
inspectors; result in an increase in criminal behavior; create cormmmercial hardships on
the ranching industry; and lend support for politically motivated, selective enforcement

of the brand laws by ill-intended officials.

There is no question that instances of theft, or loss of livestock, or deliberate
evasion of brand inspection for an improper purpose, should be treated as serious
criminal offenses. The law should and does already assign serious criminal penalty to

such intentiona! criminal acts, and for that reason, the penalties under this statute were

. stiffened in 1991.
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Gary L. Jackson

. Attorney at Law

Mr. Dave Nething, Chairman
Senate Judiciary Committee
January 23, 2007

20f4

There is equally no question that there are circumstances where the lack of a
brand inspection is not and should not be a crime. Inadvertent mistake, emergency
circumstances, taking one's own livestock across the state line for strictly local,
personal, or temporary purposes have nothing to do with theft or loss. Inadvertent
mistake or emergencies which may lead a rancher to simply forget or even to
deliberately fail to get his own livestock inspected before crossing the state line, should
not be criminalized — but would be under the proposed legislation — and especially
should not resuit in the serious criminal penalties assigned by this legislation to such

innocent non-criminal conduct.

. My community is a prime example. Ranchers who live in western McKenzie
County, North Dakota, trade in Sidney, Montana, the nearest town. The local
veterinarian is in Sidney, Montana. The locai livestock auction is in Sidney, Montana.
The local feedlots and livestock shipping points are in Sidney, Montana. Ranchers who
raside in westemn McKenzie County buy their groceries, feed and ranch supplies, in
Sidney, Montana. Many of them have Sidney, Montana addresses even though they
physically live in North Dakota, because that is the nearest post office. Why should
folks who live on the border have ta live in fear of being a felon because they may make
an inadvertent mistake and take their own cattie to the local feedlot, or can't find a brand
inspector when they take their cow or horse to the vet? Did you know that brand
inspections cannot legally be written after dark? This bill would make a rancher a felon
and put him in prison if he twice took his own cows needing a C-section at 2 a.m.,
across the border to the vet. Such a policy places these ranchers in an impossible bind

and would either compel criminal activity or destroy not just their businesses and
community, but support industries as well—veterinarians, feedlots, and such.
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Gary L. Jackson

. Attorney at Law
Mr. Dave Nething, Chairman
Senate Judiciary Committee

January 23, 2007
3of4

Jack Chase was the wise and highly respected Chief Brand Inspector for NDSA
for many years. This is what he testified to the Senate Committee on Agriculiure when

this statute was originally proposed and passed in 1991:

“The people we are trying to get to are those that are intentionally
trying to get around the law. Our intention is not to get those that are
doing this by mistake, if they do it we will have a warning letter sent to
them and let them know what they had done, and then that letter is kept
on file, so if they da it again, they would be prosecuted. Our main concemn

. is that all the people who sell cattle get paid, and the only way 1o do this is
to keep them from going out of the state before an inspector sees them.”

The brand inspection system works as well as it does because it is built on the
judgment of local brand inspectors, and the respect the community has for working with
them. Melvin Leland, past-President of NDSA was quoted in last month's Bismarck
Tribune article as saying stiffer penalties will just encourage people who made a
harmiess mistake to try to hide it. The faw should encourage self-reporting when
mistakes are made. This bili does the opposite. The purpose of brand inspection is to

prevent theft and loss; it is definitely not to punish honest people who make mistakes.

Inadvertent mistake or harmless failure to get an inspection should be merely an
administrative error, not a crime. Failure to get an inspection of one's own livestock
moving across a border for local, personal, or temporary purposes should carry no
penalty beyond an administrative written warning or a non-criminal fine, like a traffic

ticket. The statute does need amendment to orevent misguided application of it 10

. these non-criminal situations.
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Gary L. Jackson
. Attorney at Law

| Mr. Dave Nething, Chairman
| Senate Judiciary Committee
| January 23, 2007

4 of 4

If state’s attorneys are not prosecuting under the existing statute, the reason is
not that the penalties under it don’t get their attention. The problem isn't with state’s
attorneys or with the statute — the penalties under the existing statute are hardly minor,
and North Dakota's state's attorneys, by and large, do a commendable job of enforcing
North Dakota's laws. State's attorneys who are properly doing their job prosecute those
cases that have been properly investigated, and in which credible evidence

‘ demonstrates ihat a crime has occurred, and in which there is sufficient evidence to go
forward. If the existing brand inspection law is not being enforced, let's address the real
problem by training NDSA fieldmen so that they conduct professional and proper
investigations which result in credible evidence. Then state's attorneys will treat

‘ . NDSA’s referrals seriously.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Verk truly yours,

GLJ:dh
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Mr. Chairman, members of the commiltee;

As ranchers we would like to take this opportunity 10 express out concerns with several
sections of SB 2206. Calving season makes it very difficult for many of us to attend the
hearing, so we are jointly sending this letter,

We all support tough penalties for livestock thefl. The problem we fear is created is when
a person who makes a mistake with his own livestock is penalized the same as someone
who steals livestock. This is wrong,

Under Section 2 of the bill, subsection 2 ¢ : you could be guilty of a felony if you did not
list the address of the witness of a bill of sale. A bill of sale from the Stockmen’s office is
~ingluded. As you-can see, the form provided by the NDSA dees not-provide for.this.......

information.

Under subsection 3 of Section 2 of the bill, a bill of sale must be kept as long as you have
ownership of the animal. That could be five, ten, twenty years. Possibly more. For some
livestock producers, the cubbyhole of the pickup truck is their office. Maybe that is not
prudent, but it is real. Under current law, losing that bill of sale or brand clearance is an
infraction. We are about to make honest ranchers felons for working in an environment
that is not always as nice, clean, and sanitary as we would like. As the members of this
committee are aware, many times we are working in inclement conditions, trying to
complete a job such as weaning, weighing, doctoring, or preparing for a storm. Bad
things do happen. A bill of safe, or a brand clearance. is a producer’s title to that animal.
Just as your car title is your proof of ownership to your car. A person who misplaces, or
loses his title, should not be prosecuted the same as someone who steals a car.

As producers we feel that Section two of the current statute, listing these offenses as an
infraction is adequate.

Under Section 4 of the bill, our concern is the deletion of lines fourteen and fifteen on
page 3. I can see the courts tied up with people claiming the auctioneer knowingly
misrepresenied the breeding of g animal. If vou are.selling 1400 head of horses, or 5000

Section 5 of the bili deals with the removal of livestock from within the state without a
brand inspection. The Senate committee did improve the bill by amending it (o allow for
medical treatment. But how about a fifleen-year-old kid going to the neighbors to brand?
Hauling his own horse. You may say that is fine, it would just be a misdemeanor. A Class
A misdemeanor. But twenty years later, that young man gets picked up for hauling a bull
to a pasture he now owns across the line. His own bull. That second time is felony.

Many producers own land on both sides of the state line. You may be hurrying hauling
bulls to the pasture. You maybe had a neighbor that called up and needed help because
his calves broke out during the night. You don’t think of calling a brand inspector. You




“We tiope

saddle up, load up, and go to help. This should not be something you have to worry about
the same felony charge as someone who stole the horse and crossed the state line. A roper
or barrel racer who did not realize they needed a brand inspection should not be taced
with this kind of penalties.

Under this bill, we are making honest ranchers, who maybe made a mistake with their
paperwork; face a possible sentence of five years in the penitentiary, and a five thousand
dollar fine. That is wrong,

The job of the brand inspectors should be to make honest people out of criminals, not
criminals out of honest people.

hé cemmittee Would 1ook favorable upon some amendments to do what we
think the bill intended. Make it easier to prosecute criminals for theft. That is what we all
want.

Respecttully yours,
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ND ST 12.1-32-01 Page 1 of |

NDCC, 12.1-32-01

NORTH DAKOTA CENTURY CODE

TITLE 12.1. CRIMINAL CODE
CHAPTER 12.1-32. PENALTIES AND SENTENCING.
12.1-32-01 Classification of offenses - Penalties..

Offenses are divided into seven classes, which are denominated and subject to maximum penalties,
as foltows:

1. Class AA felony, for which a maximum penaity of life imprisonment without parole may be
imposed. The court must designate whether the life imprisonment sentence imposed is with or
without an opportunity for parole. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 12-59-05, a person found
guilty of a class AA felony and who recelves a sentence of life imprisonment with parole, shall not be
eligible to have that person's sentence considered by the parole board for thirty years, less sentence
reduction earned for good conduct, after that person's admission to the penitentiary.

2. Class A felony, for which a maximum penaity of twenty years' imprisonment, & fine of ten thousand
dollars, or both, may be imposed.

3. Class B felony, for which a maximum penalty of ten years' impriscnment, a fine of ten thousand
dollars, or both, may be imposed.

4. Class C felony, for which a maximum penalty of five years' Imprisonment, a fine of five thousand
daollars, or both, may be imposed.

5. Class A misdemeanor, for which a maximum Benaltv of one year's imprisonment, a fine of two
thousand dollars, or both, may be Imposed.

6. Class B misdemeanor, for which a maximum penalty of thirty days' Imprisonment, a fine of one
thousand dollfars, or both, may be imposed.

7. Infraction, for which a maximum fine of five hundred dollars may be imposed. Any person
convicted of an infraction who has, within one year prior to commission of the infraction of which the
person was convicted, been previously convicted of an offense classified as an infraction may be
sentenced as though convicted of a class B misdemeanor. If the prosecution contends that the
infraction is punishable as a class B misdemeanor, the complaint shall specify that the offense Is a

misdemeanor.

This section shail not be construed to forbid sentencing under section 12.1- 32-09, relating to
extended sentences.

Source: S.L. 1973, ch. 116, § 31; 1975, ch. 116, § 23; 1979, ch. 177, § 2; 1995, ch. 134, § 1
1997, ch. 132, § 1.

http://web2.westlaw.com/result/documenttext.aspx?docsample=Falwe&dh=NN.ST_-TNA%.  t/1&nnn?
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*+¥ THIS DOCUMENT IS CURRENT THROUGH THE 2005 SESSION *#*
**% ANNOTATIONS CURRENT THROUGH DECEMBER 18, 2006 ***

TITLE 12.1 Criminal Code
CHAPTER 12.1-02 Liability and Culpability

GO TO CODE ARCHIVE DIRECTORY FOR THIS JURISDICTION
N.D. Cent. Code, § 12.1-02-02 (2006)
12.1-02-02. Requirements of culpability.

1. For the purposes of this title, a person engages in conduct:
a. "Intentionally” if, when he engages in the conduct, it is his purpose to do so.

b. '{ if, when he engages in the conduct, he knows or has a firm belief, unaccompanied by substantial
doubt, that h&'i§ doing so, whether or not it is his purpose to do so.

c. "Recklessly" if he engages in the conduct in conscious and clearly unjustifiable disregard of a substantial like-
lihood of the existence of the relevant facts or risks, such disregard involving a gross deviation from acceptable stan-
dards of conduct, except that, as provided in section 12.1-04-02, awareness of the risk is not required where its absence
is due to self-induced intoxication.

d. "Negligently" if he engages in the conduct in unreasonable disregard of a substantial likelihood of the exis-
tence of the relgvant facts or risks, such disregard involving a gross deviation from acceptable standards of conduct.
ef he engages in the conduct intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly.
2. If a statute or regulation thereunder defining a crime does not specify any culpability and does not provide ex-
plicitly that a person may be guilty without culpability, the culpability that is required is willfully.

3. a. Except as otherwise expressly provided, where culpability is required, that kind of culpability is required with
respect to every element of the conduct and to those attendant circumstances specified in the definition of the offense,
except that where the required culpability is "intentionally”, the culpability required as to an attendant circumstance is
"knowingly".

b. Except as otherwise expressly provided, if conduct is an offense if it causes a particular result, the required de-
gree of culpability is required with respect to the resuit.

c. Except as otherwise expressly provided, culpability is not required with respect to any fact which is solely a ba-
sis for grading,

d. Except as otherwise expressly provided, culpability is not required with respect to facts which establish that a
defense does not exist, if the defense is defined in chapters 12.1-01 through 12.1-06; otherwise the least kind of culpa-
bility required for the offense is required with respect to such facts.

e. A factor as to which it is expressly stated that it must "in fact” exist is a factor for which culpability is not re-
quired.

4. Any lesser degree of required culpability is satisfied if the proven degree of culpability is higher.
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5. Culpability is not required as to the fact that conduct is an offense, except as otherwise expressly provided ina
provision outside this title.

HISTORY: S.L. 1973, ch. 116, § 2.

NOTES:

Applicability. Intentionally. Knowingly. Negligent Conduct. Sufficient Notice of Violation. Willful Conduct. -In Gen-
eral. -Violation of Injunction.

Applicability.

This section applies only to offenses or crimes described in Title 12.1. City of Dickinson v. Mueller, 261 N.W.2d
787 (N.D. 1977),

This section applies only to recodified Criminal Code and not to earlier statutes not repealed by recodification.
State v. North Dakota Educ. Ass'n, 262 N.W.2d 731, 4 A.L.R4th 724 (N.D. 1978).

Subsection (2) is only applicable to Title 2.1, and the willful culpability level will not be read into other chapters
unless the legislature specifically states as such. State v. Eldred, 1997 ND 112, 564 N.W.2d 283 (1997).

District court did not commit error in failing to give an instruction on culpability, since culpability is a non-
essential element of DUI because DUI is a strict liability offense. State v. Glass, 2000 ND 212, 620 N.W.2d 146 (2000).

Under N.D.C.C. § 12.1-02-01 and subsection (1} of this section, the level of culpability for an offense is analyzed at
the time a person engages in the conduct which constitutes an offense. State v. Jahner, 2003 ND 36, 657 N.W.2d 266

(2003).
Intentionally,

Although this section may be directly applicable only to offenses or crimes described in Title 12.1, it was an appro-
priate source to look to in determining the definition of "intent" in section 57-38-45(3). State v. Benson, 376 N.W.2d 36

(N.D. 1985).
Knowingly.

"Knowingly" does not require absolute knowledge, but merely a firm belief, unaccompanied by substantial doubt.
State v. Kaufman, 310 N.W.2d 709 (N.D. 1981).

Evidence was sufficient to sustain a criminal trespass conviction where defendant admitted that he received the di-
vorce decree, which awarded his ex-wife the parties' home, the ex-wife testified that she informed defendant that he
could not come to the house without her approval, and defendant admitted that he had been told not to come to the
house without her approval. The ex-wife testified that she did not receive a phone call from defendant, but awoke and
discovered him in her residence, and defendant admitted that he entered the house through the window. State v. Ber-
tram, 2006 ND 10, 708 N.W.2d 913, 2006 N.D. LEXIS 6 (Jan. 31, 2006).

Negligent Conduct,

It is not necessary to show that defendant realized her conduct would in all probability produce death in order to es-
tablish that death was negligently caused; negligent conduct requires only showing of an unreasonable disregard of a
substantial likelihood of existence of relevant facts or risks. State v. Ohnstad, 359 N.W.2d 827 (N.D. 1984).

In a case involving leaving the scene of an accident involving death under N.D.C.C. § 39-08-04, a motion for an
acquittal under N.D.R.Crim.P. 29 was properly denied because an argument that defendant was not aware he had hit
someone did not apply the negligence culpability standard under N.D.C.C. § 12./-02-02; based on the age of a truck and
problems that it was having, defendant should have at least gotten out and checked after he felt a bump while backing
out of a parking lot near a bar. A witnesses' testimony regarding the amount of time defendant spent around his truck
made the jury’'s conclusion that defendant acted negligently by leaving the scene even more reasonable because it
seemed more likely he would have known a drunk man was in the vicinity and could have been the source of the bump,
even if he did not think the man was behind the truck when he backed up. State v. Jaceb, 2006 ND 246, - NNW.2d -,
2006 N.D. LEXIS 253 (Nov. 28, 2006).
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Sufficient Notice of Violation.

The language of section 12.1-16-03, when read together with the definition of "negligently," is sufficient!y explicit
to enable a reasonable person to determine what type of conduct renders him liable under the statute. State v. Tranby,
437 NW.2d 817 (N.D. 1989), cert. denied, 493 U.S. 841, 110 5. Ct. 128, 107 L. Ed. 2d 88 (1989).

Wiltful Conduct.
-~ -In General.

A person acts "'Willfully' if he engages in the conduct intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly.” Negligent conduct
does not constitute willful conduct. State v. Anderson, 480 N.W.2d 727 (N.D. 1992),

-- -VYiolation of Injunction,

There was sufficient evidence for the jury to find that the defendant was guilty of disobeying a lawful preliminary
injunction where the defendant evidenced knowledge of the injunction by her initial lawful demonstration, by her re-
sponse to a warning, and by her testimony, where there was ample evidence that the defendant was part of a group that
demonstrated other than quietly and peacefully, and where there were evidentiary conflicts and factual questions about
the defendant's state of mind sufficient for the jury to infer a willfulness to violate the injunction. Stare v. Franck, 499
N.W.2d 108 (N.D. 1993).

DECISIONS UNDER PRIOR LAW Corruptly. Culpable Negligence. Negligence, Willful Resistance.

Corruptly,

Even though an information did not charge that the bribery was done "corruptly”, it did charge that the defendant
did the acts "willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously” and this was the equivalent of an allegation that the money was
given with corrupt intent. State v. La Flame, 30 N.D. 489, 152 N.W. 810 (19]5),

Culpable Negligence.

As applied to the operation of a motor vehicle, culpable negligence implied a total lack of care defined as driving in
a reckless and heedless manner with utter disregard for the lives and limbs of persons upon the highway. State v. Gulke,
76 N.D. 653, 38 N.W.2d 722 (1949), decided prior to the enactment of this section and N.D.C.C. section 12.1-16-02.

Negligence.

An instruction defining the terms "negligence” and "negligently" in the exact language of the statute was sufficient
where no more specific instruction was asked. Zilke v. Johnson, 22 N.D. 75, 132 N.W. 640 (191 1).

Willful Resistance.

A defendant could not be convicted of the willful resistance of a search warrant of which he had no notice or
knowledge at the time the resistance was made. Stare ex rel. Register v. McGahey, 12 N.D, 535, 97 N.W. 865 (1904).

Collateral References.

Criminal Law 19-25.

21 Am. Jur. 2d, Criminal Law, § 129 et seq.

22 C.J1.8. Criminal Law, §§ 3145.

Intoxication: modemn status of the rules as to voluntary intoxication as defense to criminal charge, 8 4.L.R.3d 1236.
Mental or emoticnal condition as diminishing responsibility for crime, 22 4.L.R 3d 1228.

Moderm status of test of criminal responsibility-state cases, 9 A.L R.4th 526.

Necessity and sufficiency of showing, in criminal prosecution under "hit and run” statute, accused's knowledge of
accident, injury, or damage, 26 A.L.R.5th |.

Adequacy of defense counsel's representation of criminal client - conduct occurring at time of trial regarding issues
of diminished capacity, intoxication, and unconsciousness, 78 A4.L.R. 5th 197.



Page 4
N.D. Cent. Code, § 12.1-02-02

Adequacy of defense counsel's representation of criminal client - pretrial conduct or conduct at unspecified time re-
garding issues of diminished capacity, intoxication, and unconsciousness, 79 4.L.R.5th 419.




BILL OF SALE , North Dakota, 20
SOLD TO
ADDRESS

No. HEAD KIND BRAND LOCATION
|
!

I hereby covenant with the said grantee that I am the lawful owner of said livestock, that they are free
from all incumbrance, that I have good right to sell the same. That | will warrant and defend the same
against lawful claims and demands of all persons.

WITNESS )
WITNESS Seller.
NDSA Form 6 394 20M {(Not valid unless witnessed)




©, 79620 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for Representative Kingsbury
March 2007

BRAND LAW VIOLATIONS - PENALTY COMPARISON BETWEEN
CURRENT LAW AND 2007 PROPROSED LEGISLATION

. ' This memorandum examines various brand law violations identified in North Dakota Century Code (NDCC)
Chapter 36-09 and compares the current penalties to those proposed in Senate Bill No. 2206 and Engrossed

Senate 8ill No. 2206.

NDCC Section - Activity Current Penalty SB 2206 Engrossed SB 2206
36-09-17 - Defacing brands and unlawfully branding | Class A misdemeanor | Class C felony Ciass A misdemeanor
{1st offense)
Class C felony
{2nd offense)
36-09-20 - Bills of sale Infraction Class A misdemeanor | Class A misdemeanor
(1st offense) (1st offense)
Class C felony Class C falony
{2nd offense) {2nd offense)
36-09-20.1 - False proof of ownership Class B misdemeanor | Class A misdemeanor | Class A misdemeanor
(1st offense) (1st offense)
Ciass B felony Class C felony
(2nd offense) (2nd offense)
36-09-22 - Sale under false registration certificate | Class B misdemeanor | Class A misdemeanor | Class A misdemeanor
{1st offense) (1st offense)
Class B felony Class C felony
{2nd offense) {2nd offense}
36-09-23 - Removal of livestock from state Class B misdemeanor | Class A misgemeanor | Class A misdemeanor
(1st offense) {1st offense) Z
Class C felony
) {2nd offense within Class B felony Class C felony .
: 15 years or 3rd offense) [{2nd offense) {2nd offense)

ATTACH:1




APPENDIX

12.1-32-01. Classification of offenses - Penalties. Offenses are divided into seven classes, which
' are denominated and subject to maximum penalties, as follows:
1. Class AA felony, for which a maximum penalty of life imprisonment without parole may be
\ imposed. The court must designate whether the life imprisonment sentence imposed is with or
‘ without an opportunity for parole. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 12-59-05, a person
found guilty of a class AA felony and who receives a sentence of life imprisonment with parole,
shall not be eligible to have that person's sentence considered by the parole board for thirty
years, less sentence reduction earned for good conduct, after that person's admission to the
penitentiary.
2. Class A felony, for which a maximum penalty of twenty years' imprisonment, a fine of ten
thousand dollars, or both, may be imposed.
3. Class B felony, for which a maximum penalty of ten years' imprisonment, a fine of ten thousand
dollars, or both, may be imposed.
4. Class C felony, for which a maximum penalty of five years' imprisonment, a fine of five thousand
dollars, or both, may be imposed.
Class A misdemeanor, for which a maximum penalty of one year's imprisonment, a fine of two
thousand dollars, or both, may be imposed.
Class B misdemeanor, for which a maximum penalty of thirty days' imprisonment, a fine of one
thousand dollars, or both, may be imposed.
Infraction, for which a maximum fine of five hundred dollars may be imposed. Any person
convicted of an infraction who has, within one year prior to commission of the infraction of which
the person was convicted, been previously convicted of an offense classified as an infraction
may be sentenced as though convicted of a class B misdemeanor. If the prosecution contends
that the infraction is punishable as a class B misdemeanor, the complaint shall specify that the
offense is a misdemeanor.

N »

This section shall not be construed to forbid sentencing under section 12.1-32-09, reiating to
. ~ extended sentences.

()
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Registration Number

State/Country Foaled
NORTH DAKQOTA

identification Number

Markings

A Certificate of Registration
AMERICAN QUARTER
"ORSE ASSOCIATION
gisteréd Name
1IM READYONTHERIGHT

Foaling Date
APRIL 12, 2006

Color
BAY

Sex

STALLION

Date Acquired Date Issued
APRIL 12, 2006 OCTOBER 04, 2006

BLAZE. LEFT FORE PASTERN WHITE. LEFT HIND STOCKING. NO OTHER MARKINGS.

This Is to certify the above namad and describad horse has been ragistered with American Cluarter Horse Association,
This cartificate is lssued in sole refiance on written application submitted by the owner &t time of foaling without further
verification by AQHA. Ownetship of this cettificate is retained by AQHA, and issued upon express condition that
AQHA has the continuing privilege to demand immediats return thereof for correction, cancellation, or any other offlclal
roason AQHA sules, and pending resolution of the matter, AQGHA may retain possession thereof.

: 37/04/ g/a»/”

Executive Vice President

JESSIES CASH

DASH FOR CASH 1238058
ZIPP ZCRO | 1566665
HARD CASH DASH 1757128
DOCS JESSIE JAMIE 2889748

R
LI

1

)

I

AR

ROCKET WRANGLER 0692535
FIND A BUYER TB  T0120549
ZEVI TB T0149131
QUINCY HOP 0991561
DASH FOR CASH 1238058
LINDA TE 1350048
LYNX SILVER SOCKS ° 1910115
JESSIE JAMIE 0713528

The name at the top of this certificate listed as Current Owner is the present owner of this horse as shown on the records of American Quarter
Horsa Association. If ownership changes have occurred, up to three previous owners are listed below. All othar ownership records are on file
in the AQHA office.

Iz

(57

{Physical addrass) )
1600 Quarter Horse Drive
Amarillo, Texas 79104

B

Ial;j

o lr - R e !!,___
TR 8 I

Telephone: {B06}376-4811

www.agha.com

(Mailing address)
P.0. Box 200
Amarillo, Texas 79168
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appropriate fees. Alterations on the transfer report are not acceptable. Any arasure or altaration on the transfer form may necessitate verification and/or a new transfer

report properly complated and signed.

Transfer of Ownership

To process a changs in the ownership for the horse identified on the front of this Certificate of Registration, please complete this form and return it to our office with

Betors purchasing, please be certain the photograph on the frant of this Certificate of Registration matches the harse being purchased,

I L

Sellor's ID: 4HERNN

egistration Numbar:’ _—
Horse'a Name: HM READYONTHERIGHT

‘

||!llI|IIIII"lII|IIIIIIl"IIIIl|I|I"III'I|HIIIIII||II"III"III|

DATE OF SALE |* / /

Sold To (BUYER'S Name)

If the address of the owner has changed
please provide us

with a current address

Dawtirme Telaphone Number( )

Gelded: OYes

IMPORTANT:
List month, day, and year horse actually changed ownership.

AQHA ID #

/___ONo

Dats(if known)

Buyer must hava a current year membership in axact name listed above or pay a nonmember fea. Print buyer's name, which must not exceed 30 characters (letters, spaces and punctuation).

BUYER'S ADDRESS - STREET OR BOX NUMBER

cITY

STATE

ZIP CODE

BUYER'S HOME TELEPHONE NUMBER

BUYER'S DAYTIME TELEPHONE NUMBER

certily the horsa sold is the horse registered with the American Quarter Horse Association as described on the front of this Certificate of Registration.
oraby authorize AQHA to record the transler of ownership of the horse.

Signature of AT

or an authorized agent. Authorization must be on file with AQHA.

If consigned to auction sale, please give name, date and maliling address of sale company. We recommend you not use this Transfer Report if going through an
auction, but use a traditional form separate from the certificate, This is recommendad in case horse does nat sell.

Company Name

Mailing Address

Data of Auction

A transfor 1oa |a required to process an ownership changa. To recelve the lowast possible 100, the buyer must be an AQHA Mamber. An open Mamberahip will eutomatically be cherged to the
Buysl if he ls not already a current AQHA Mamber. Thars are three lypes of membership - opan, amateur and youth. For a compiete lsting of current feas and to determine the type of mambarship you

nead, pleasa refer to our Web site at www.agha com, the AQHA rule book or you may cell our office and ona of our representatives will be glad to assist you.

DECEASEINSOLD WITHOUT PAPERS: If a horae is deceased of has been sold without papers, pleass return the original Certificate of Registration along with & signed statement providing the
data of death or sale. Wae will return the certificats o you for deceased horses.

CORRECTIONS: Ifinformation on the cortificate rasds to be corrected, a correction affidendt must be filad (form avatlable from AQHA) as well 83 cusrent photographs and a eorrection fee. If it is an
update o change to a gelding, please send a sighed statemant giving us the approdmate date geldad. To add a brand, pleasa includs a diagram of the brand showing the location, There is no charga

for geld and brand additions.

PHOTOGRAPH REPLACEMENT: i you would like to have the photograph on tha front of e certificats replaced with a more curtent pleture, please submit a 3/4 left of right side vew photograph

using AQHA's guidalinea for taking phetographa, Thera is a replacemant fea for updating the photograph.

I:] Trenster fea for current AQHA or AQHYA Mamber ...

[[] Trenster fae tor nonmsmmber who wishes to bscome a t2-month Member

D Transter taa for nonmamber who wishes to become a Youth Mamber .........

Birthdate of Youth / /

Duas payments may ba daductible by Membars as an ordinary and nacassary business expense; howevar, contributions or gifts to the American Quarter Horse Asaoclation are not deductible as charitable
contributions for ledaral iIncome tax purposes. Howevar, donationa to the Amaricen Quarter Horse Foundation ARE tax daductible to the extent allowed by law. $1 of your annusl membership duea is

FEES

SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE
. $15 D OPTIONAL - Spaclal Handling - two day service {in addition to regular tee) ...

..... $50 D OPTIQNAL. -Overnight Mall Service Is available to those who requested spaclal handiing above. This fea
Is only applicable for service within the United States and does not Include Saturday delivery charges.

$30 For service outside the U.S. and/or Saturday service, contact our office for current rates ..

dasignated for o subscription to America's Horse AQHA's publication for Mambers only.

.. $25

. $§15

U. 8. Funds Only - Do Not Send Cash Total amount anciosed:

It vou wish 13 giv vour lees wilh a Visa of MasierCard, please sompleta Iha following:
Card Number

Expires: ___ ___-__ . AQHAID # (if known):
ider's Nama:
fura:
Addrass: - -
City: ‘é!at: ZipCods:

Daytime Phone; ( )

D The American Quarter Horse Journal

[ The Amarican Quarter Horse Hacing Journal

[ soth Magazines

AQHA OFFICIAL PUBLICATION SUBSCRIPTIONS

1Year US.....ccciiiiiinne
or 3Year US...covmiecn
1 Year Canada..............
1 Year International.......

1 Year LL.S
3 Year U.S........
1 Year Canada
1 Year International.......

$25
$60

100

ooon
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NORTH DAKOTA sTV OCKMEN'S ASSOCIATION
407 South 2ng Street
Bismarck, North Palmra S8504-5535

LOCAL INSPECTION CERTIFICATE

) ‘::
Heifers Builg Calves Brands & Brand Owner or i

Mules  Studs Coits Location Purchased From

/

T

s ’ﬂ/ﬁ/l/i——- Jo < Sh\ +Z f
pd .

L~

TOTALS

/

elle,
ircle ofig

(circle one)
Consignee:

8. :-j hjpper;zﬂh/L

7

Qo

o

Address: é-'s ot e b . ﬂ/&o p
Address; 4 23 Sh;"*“'\_ j }gdf< L
I ,y

Trucker- 3 Inlg

"

Destination: {5 . 4 Se-fl , ,Qd< : CI

Miles
Traveled:

bai_,

Mileage
Fee:

License Number: _ﬁfLK“ | 23

\S/‘

Brand Fees: e 2D
Ll Fee U rm

: Sienature of (Agent For) Shipper Signature of Brand Inspecror
3| ATTEN ION: Binsof Sale, Market Clearances or Affidavits

must accompany inspection when applicable,

A il i i
S

Make all checks payable to the Norp, Dakotq Stockmen s Association

Pink - Association Capy
White - Purchager 5 Copy
Fellow - Inspectory Copy




